APPROVED MINUTES
PLANNING COMMISSION
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA
SEPTEMBER 10, 2019
7:00PM

CALL TO ORDER:
Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning
Commission for September 10, 2019 to order at 7:00 PM

CALL OF ROLL:

On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present:
Mark Lobermeier, Joel Ericson, Bryan Murdock, Katie West and Judy Coughlin

ABSENT: None

Also Present: Fred Weck Zoning Administrator and Council Liaison Lisa Iverson

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM:
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

OPEN FORUM: NONE
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

1. Consider approving the minutes of the “Regular Meeting” of the Wyoming, Minnesota
Planning Commission for August 27, 2019

Commissioner West noted that on page 6, paragraph 5, it should state “or improvements”.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER ERICSON, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE “REGULAR
MEETING” OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR AUGUST
27,2019 AS AMENDED.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain: None

Absent:  None

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS:

2. Rezone R2to R1 Z-19-001 “Shore View Two”
Applicant: Greg Radefeldt, Rock Builders
West Comfort Drive
Property ID Number: 21.10501.00

Chair Lobermeier explained that this zoning change is being requested so the other parcel that is
part of this development, which is Property ID Number 21.10505.00, would have the same zoning.

Chair Lobermeier opened the public hearing at 7:05 p.m.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER



MURDOCK, TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR COMMENTS AT 7:07 P.M.

Voting Aye: Murdock Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent:  None

Rolf Beernath, 25534 Heritage Lane, stated that he would like to know the reason why the
zoning is being changed other than consistency, which doesn’t seem like a valid reason to
him.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that when they use the term consistent, they mean that it
is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. He explained that these properties have been
nonconforming within the Comprehensive Plan and have been allowed to rezone at the time
they develop which brings them into consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.

Jackie Anderson, 25484 East Comfort Drive, stated that although she serves on the Forest
Lake Comfort Lake Watershed District Board, she is here tonight as a resident and a former
Planning Commissioner. She stated that there are a few things about this situation that bother
her. She stated that in the current Comprehensive Plan it does not say that these properties
will be allowed to rezone when they develop. She explained that she thought the whole area
was zoned R2. She stated that she opposes this rezoning because this is the most
environmentally sensitive part of the lot and there will not be room for the drainage, septic and
impervious surface. She stated that she thinks this area is prime for a nice development and
doesn’t feel the lots should be squeezed in so closely to the wetland buffers. She stated that
she would like larger lots that maintain the rural flavor of the area. She stated that this is not
a P.U.D. so she does not see enough room on the properties to maintain the integrity of the
area and follow the concept of the Comprehensive Plan. She complimented the developer
for the development on the west side. She stated that she thinks it was very forward thinking
on behalf of the City and the Comprehensive Plan to have this area as natural parkland in that
area.

Charles Rheault, 25433 West Comfort Drive, stated that the plan appears to make them all
one-acre lots but asked about the septic systems and stated that he doesn’t think there will
be enough room on at least 3 of the lots to have two septic systems. He stated that Lot #8,
Block 1, Block 3, Lots #5 and #6 are up against the swamps.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER WEST, TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF THE
PUBLIC HEARING AT 7:16 P.M.

Voting Aye: Murdock Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent.  None

Zoning Administrator Weck explained that when the City looks at rezoning, they are just
looking at the parcel of land and not looking at the size of the lots.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER ERICSON, TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE REQUEST BY GREG
RADEFELDT, ROCK BUILDERS TO REZONE FROM R2 TO R1 FOR PROPERTY ID
NUMBERS 21.10501.00 FOR “SHORE VIEW TWO”.



Voting Aye: Murdock Ericson, West, Coughlin, and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent:  None

3. Variance — Lot Width and Road Frontage V-19-001 “Shore View Two”

Applicant: Greg Radefeldt, Rock Builders
West Comfort Drive

Property ID Numbers: 21.10501.00 and
21.10505.00

Chair Lobermeier explained that this request is for a variance for lot width and road frontage to
allow lot dimensions similar to the adjacent developments. He called the public hearing to order
at 7:18 p.m.

Chair Lobermeier explained that the applicant came before the Planning Commission in May with
the idea of developing this area as a P.U.D. in order to have some flexibility with lot dimensions
because of the amount of wetlands in the area. He stated that the applicant is no longer asking
for this lot to be a P.U.D. but would still like to be allowed some flexibility with lot width and to
conform with the adjacent developments.

Greg Radefeldt, Rock Builders, stated that density, in this instance, is a double-edged sword. He
stated that this will be a quality product with concrete curb and gutter. He explained that there
will be 1 large pond and 5 additional smaller ponds and they plan to maintain as much of the
woodland areas as possible which would be hard to do with bigger lots because people couldn’t
afford them. He stated that most of the lots are over an acre.

Commissioner Coughlin asked why the applicant wasn’'t moving forward with a P.U.D., which is
a Planned Unit Development that allows for smaller lots but greenspace must be included in
exchange for the smaller lot sizes.

Mr. Radefeldt stated that for a P.U.D. there would need to be a central community sewer system,
6 acres greenspace park, and an association. He stated that he did not want to have a central
community sewer system because all the ones he knows about have been a problem. He stated
that also having association dues from everyone cause trouble and everyone being responsible
for their own sewer system sounded like a better idea.

Commissioner Coughlin asked about access to the parkland.

Mr. Radefeldt stated that there are at least two access points. He noted that it is intended to be
a bicycle or walking type park, not vehicles. He stated that one the far west side there is an
easement through there for a trail connection to the west when that property is developed.
Commissioner Coughlin asked if the Park Board had reviewed this information.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that they have reviewed it and determined that this is the
parkland dedication that they would like to see.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if the watershed district had completed their review.
Mr. Radefeldt stated that the watershed district had not yet completed their review.

Commissioner Murdock asked for an explanation of Outlot A and Lot 10.



Mr. Radefeldt stated that the City does not allow outlots, so they essentially combined that area
with Lot 10.

Chair Lobermeier stated that some of the lots appear to be getting pretty narrow and it is difficult
from the plans, to see what is changing.

Mr. Radefeldt stated that the only changes are the combination of Outlot A with Lot 10 and also
Block 2, Lots 4 and 5 were changed to make the depth to length cohesive with the code.

Commissioner Coughlin asked if the applicant had tried to lay out the plans meeting the ordinance
rule of 200-foot-wide lots.

Mr. Radefeldt that they had looked at that but with curb and gutter, the expense of the ponds, and
with the road being like a 9-ton road and this could not be done and still have lots that are 200
feet wide.

Commissioner West confirmed that the reason for the smaller lots is the cost of the lots and
making them affordable for people to buy them.

Mr. Radefeldt stated that is one of the reasons, but they also want to turn over a good product to
the City which means slightly higher density.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER WEST, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER
MURDOCK, TO OPEN THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR COMMENT AT 7:30 P.M.

Voting Aye: Ericson, Coughlin, Murdock, West and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent:  None

Charles Rheault, 25433 West Comfort Drive, stated that the plat that they received shows a house
but does not show a garage. He stated that if that is added in there is not much room to put in a
new septic system. He stated that septic systems go bad and the trucks do need to access the
area for new systems or repairs and is concerned that there will not be enough room if this is
approved as presented.

Jeanine Hansen, 25553 West Comfort Drive, asked why concrete curb and gutter was necessary
since there were not on West Comfort Drive. She stated that they moved to the City to feel like
they were in the country and does not feel that curb and gutter is necessary here. She stated that
she agrees with Mr. Rheault’s concern about the narrow lots and having room for two septic areas
and access for trucks. She stated that this development feels very crowded and seems like a
larger city type development. She stated that she is also concerned about the increased number
of vehicles on the existing road.

Rolf Beernath, 25534 Heritage Lane, stated that he bumps up against the proposed development
near Block 2. He stated that he is concerned about 3 neighbors suddenly being added next to
him and noted that it won’t feel rural anymore. He stated that he opposes this proposal and noted
that Lot 2, Block 2 really seems like it is just being squeezed in. He suggested that Lots 2, 3 and
4 be combined into just 2 lots. He stated that the information that was sent to the area residents
was not very legible and asked for clearer information in the future.

Commissioner Murdock asked how large Mr. Beernath’s lot is.



Mr. Beernath stated that his is 150 feet wide and is about 1.5 acres. He stated that he is also a
bit concerned about traffic coming through there because people have the tendency to drive
quickly in this area.

Jackie Anderson, 25484 East Comfort Drive, stated that she stands by her earlier comments
opposing the lot width being reduced from 200 feet, especially on the west end of the project.
She reiterated Mr. Beernath’s concerns that what was sent out is very difficult to read. She
suggested that rather than sending out larger, more detailed information, perhaps there could be
a link to the website that would clearly show the map. She stated that while the developer is
making a grand gesture to set aside the green space, everything else seems very tight and
crowded. She gave examples of areas that concern her as being large enough for a reasonable
house and enough space for both a primary and a secondary septic area. She stated that she
would like these lots be larger than 150 feet side. She stated that she also echoes the comments
by Ms. Hansen and asked why it was necessary to have concrete curb and gutter and a nine-ton
road. She stated that there will not be large truck traffic in this area and asked if the reason for
the road was because the land was so compromised that the road needed to be built up. She
stated that she doesn’t believe curb and gutter is needed because all the water in the area ends
up in Comfort Lake anyway and she is in favor of keeping the rural flavor with ditches. She stated
that she believes this development if done correctly, can be a real asset to the community. She
noted that people move out to this area to have country style lots.

Dennis Howard, 7279 256" Street, stated that his family moved from Forest Lake to the City about
1.5 years ago to get a more rural feel. He stated that they love seeing the wildlife walking through
the area and likes the rural character. He stated that when their friends from Forest Lake come
to visit, they compliment them on how great and non-suburban the area is. He stated that he has
a lot of questions and one of them is what the overall plan is from the City’s Comprehensive Plan
for the area. He stated that they love having the corn field behind them, but he understands that
it won't be there forever but would have concerns if there was going to be a large apartment
complex built there.

Jeanine Hansen, 25553 West Comfort Drive, asked what price point these homes will be and if
the square footage would be comparable with what is in the area.

Todd Larson, 25533 Heritage Lane, stated that his main concern is drainage and the potential
septic issues with this development. He stated that a good part of the back of his lot is wetland
and before the new homes were built on West Comfort Drive, the water would come up in the
spring and then go down. He explained that this year, the water came up in the spring and never
went down. He expressed concerns that there will be even more drainage issues with new
construction and fears that he will get water in his basement. He asked what would be done to
assure the neighbors that the drainage issues would all be addressed and their property would
not be adversely affected by this project. He stated that he is also concerned about room for septic
systems, especially for Lots 3 and 4. He stated that if the wetland area is adversely affected by
septic areas that will take a huge chunk out of their property value because of the affect it will
have on the wildlife in the area.

Charles Rheault, asked if the Planning Commission members had gone out and looked at this
area. He suggested that if they haven't, they should go out and walk the area and see how close
everything is.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER MURDOCK, TO CLOSE THE PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF THE
PUBLIC HEARING AT 7:47 P.M.

Voting Aye: Ericson, Coughlin, Murdock, West and Lobermeier



Voting Nay: None
Abstain:  None
Absent:  None

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that to answer the questions regarding the road, 255™ Street
will continue west until it gets to Hawk Meadows. He explained that because it has the potential
to become a collector street that is part of the reason for the tonnage of the road. He explained
that the curb and gutter is a design choice by the developer. He stated that all the lots in this
area are on septic and noted that he agrees that some of these lots may not be large enough to
support two septic system locations so the developer will need to prove that it will work.

Commissioner Murdock asked what information or criteria the City was using the determine the
appropriate septic size.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it is based on both County ordinance and State code.

Commissioner Coughlin stated that she understands why the developer wants to have smaller
lots, but she does not think the application meets the criteria to grant a variance. She gave
examples of different lot sizes on the lake and in Bridgewater which was put in under the
Township. She stated that the City ordinance clearly states that lots are to be 200 feet wide which
is also consistent with the County. She stated that she cannot think of a time where the
Commission has granted a variance on 18 out of 21 lots because it goes against the ordinance.
She stated that she sees this as an economic difficulty and not a practical difficulty. She stated
that if this is allowed the City has set a precedent for everything in the R1 district. She gave
examples of nearby developments that had to follow the ordinance that have also had a lot of
wetlands and weird layouts. She stated that this variance is extreme and so far off of what the
ordinance states that she is having a hard time finding a reason to support it.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he shares Commissioner Coughlin’s concerns and was
already concerned about the number of septic systems with the smaller lots.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he agrees that there are some very thin lots in this plat. He stated
that it is somewhat unclear as to what is being asked for because there has been new information
coming in right up until the meeting started. He stated that he thinks there is insufficient
information because the only thing he knows that they are asking for is to be allowed lots less
than 200 feet in width. He stated that he agrees with Commissioner Coughlin statement that in
the past the Commission has approved variances for 1 or 2 lots in this kind of development, but
not 18 out of 21 lots. He reiterated that he feels much of the information on this has been quite
vague.

Mr. Radefeldt stated that they are planning on curb and gutter because you can control more of
the flow and collect the water in order to put it into treatment ponds with them. He stated that all
the ponds will be interconnected. He noted that one other reason for curb and gutter is to prevent
garbage trucks and school buses from driving off the edge of the road which causes maintenance
issues. He explained that at one time, they did have the plat drawn out with 200-foot-wide lots
which would change the whole configuration and would mean that 3 or 4 lots would be lost. He
discussed potential prices for the lots. He noted that every one of the lots meet the standards for
septic as well as buildable square footage. He stated that if it tabled, the project will be bumped
to next summer.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the next Planning Commission meeting is September 24, 2019.

Commissioner West stated that she agrees with the other Commissioners that there are a lot of
unknown factors. She stated that she feels the lots, as proposed, as just too narrow.



Mr. Radefeldt asked the Commission what they would consider an acceptable size lot.

Commissioner Ericson stated that he would like to see a plat map with this property and the
adjacent properties outlined so he can get a sense of proportion.

Commissioner Coughlin suggested that he could use the County GIS information and pull up the
property ID number to see the area.

Chair Lobermeier stated that he doesn’t necessarily think that a narrower lot makes a
development more or less rural. He stated that the practicalities of the information presented is
that it is hard to determine if there is room for a house and two septic systems with what they
have been given. He stated that he would like a table that shows each lot, its width, its depth and
its total area available for septic.

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER LOBERMEIER, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER MURDOCK,
TO CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING TO THE SEPTEMBER 24, 2019 PLANNING
COMMISSION MEETING FOR THE VARIANCE REQUEST BY GREG RADEFELDT, ROCK
BUILDERS, “SHORE VIEW TWO” FOR PROPERTY ID NUMBERS 21.10501.00 AND
21.10505.00 IN ORDER TO ALLOW TIME TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, Coughlin, West and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent:  None

Mr. Radefeldt stated that he needs some clear direction on what the Commission still needs from
him for the next meeting and so he is ready for the Council meeting.

The Commission reiterated some of the information that they would like to see more clearly
defined before the next meeting.

Zoning Administrator Weck clarified how the 10,000 feet needs to be shown as available and
suitable for septic system for each lot.

4. Preliminary Plat: D-19-004 “Shore View Two”
Applicant: Greg Radefeldt, Rock Builders
West Comfort Drive
Property ID Number: 21.10501.00 and 21.10505.00

Chair Lobermeier opened the Public Hearing at 8:27 p.m.

Mr. Radefeldt asked if there was a way to poll the Council to see their feelings on some of the
things that have been discussed, such as ditches and no curb and gutter. He stated that he
doesn’t want to waste anyone’s time if those types of things will not be approved.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the Commission cannot speak for the Council but they do take into
account the Commission and staff recommendations.

Commissioner Murdock asked that all the features on the next version of the Preliminary Plat are
included on the legend so it is more easily understood.

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER WEST, TO



OPEN THE PUBLIC TESTIMONY PORTION OF THE PUBLIC HEARING AT 8:31 P.M.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, Coughlin, West and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent:  None

Belinda Larson, 25533 Heritage Lane, stated that they are concerned about drainage issues
because of what happened after the previous development. She stated that there has been
standing water in the neighborhood that has impacted the wetland in their backyard. She stated
that their backyard has been shrinking and they are concerned about water eventually ending up
in their basement. She stated that she is very curious to see what the perk tests would show
about the possibility of installing both a house and a septic system near the wetland area. She
stated that she would like to know what the engineers have said about the new development and
the drainage. She stated that she has heard through word of mouth that the surveyors had said
that the drainage from that development would go into their wetland area. She stated that she
doesn’t believe in hearsay, but would like to get some information on that issue.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he can show her drainage and construction plans for both
developments.

Ms. Larson asked if the perk tests would also be open to the public.
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that all of that information is open to the public.

Rolf Beernath, 25534 Heritage Lane, stated that they have not flooded every year but this past
year it was up to their windowsills. He stated that part of the problem is that all the snow on
Heritage Lane gets dumped into the culvert so there is a large amount of snow on his side of the
street. He noted that there is a drain pipe in his yard that is detailed on one of the plat maps. He
stated that he doesn’t want anymore water coming into the area either and would like to be able
to review the drainage plans for this proposal.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he is welcome to come to the office and view the drainage
plans.

Dennis Howard, 7279 256" Street, stated that he is happy with the park and the walking paths,
but asked why Heritage Lane needs to continue through.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that the Bridgewater Development was put in with a number of
dead-end roads that were planned for future development and this is one of the ways to get
interconnectedness to these properties as originally planned. He stated that if there are too many
cul-de-sacs, it becomes an emergency access problem.

Jackie Anderson, stated that because of the significant changes to the preliminary plat, she asked
if there would be an additional public hearing for residents to comment on the new plans.

Chair Lobermeier stated that there would not be another public hearing. He stated that the public
hearing regarding the variance request will be continued to the next Public Hearing. He stated
that he is assuming that the action on the Preliminary Plat will be the same and it will also be
continued to the following meeting.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he will not be sending out an additional mailing, but
everyone present knows that the Public Hearing will continue on September 24, 2019.



Ms. Anderson asked how long it would be before 255" would go through and expressed concerns
about buses turning around.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that would be determined by the neighboring property owners
and noted that there will be a temporary turn around added.

Ms. Anderson asked if there could be more detailed information presented next time that includes
information about the lot widths and also clarify where the park trail will be located.

Charles Rheault stated that the Commissions job is to enforce the rules of the City, not to make
the developer more money. He stated that the rules clearly state that the lot widths need to be
200 feet.

MOTION BY COMMISSIONER ERICSON, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER WEST, TO
CONTINUE THE PUBLIC HEARING TO SEPTEMBER 24, 2019, FOR THE PRELIMINARY
PLAT REVIEW FOR “SHORE VIEW TWO”, GREG RADEFELDT, ROCK BUILDERS,
PROPERTY ID NUMBERS 21.10501.00 AND 21.10505.00

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, Coughlin, West and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent:  None

Commissioner Coughlin stated that for the Preliminary Plat, there were a number of staff
recommendations and she would like to see as many of those as possible addressed before it
comes back before the Commission.

Commissioner Murdock stated that he would also like to be able to see the maps sent out via
PDF for this project as well as others.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he has a PDF available for this, but cannot e-mail it
because of its size. He stated that it is somewhat easier if people come into the office to see the
plans.

Commission Coughlin suggested that residents that have an existing problem go ahead and
contact either City Engineer Erichson or City Administrator Linwood.

Chair Lobermeier called for a brief recess at 8:47 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 8:52 p.m.
NEW BUSINESS - NONE

OLD BUSINESS:

5. Comprehensive Plan Update

Mayor Iverson noted that the discussion at the Council went really well. She stated that they
made a few language changes, but the newsletter is at the printers. She stated that everything

will be ready for Stagecoach Days.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he wasn'’t sure if the survey had been officially opened,
but it is on Survey Monkey and just needs to be activated when the City is ready.

Commissioner West suggested that this information be posted to social media when everything
is ready.



Mayor lverson encouraged Commissioners to come and be available at Stagecoach Days to
answer questions and encourage people to fill out the survey between 11:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.

Commissioner Coughlin suggested that there also be a press release sent out to area
publications. She stated that she would also like there to be a sign at the library and other public
places.

COMMUNICATIONS: NONE
UPDATES:

Commissioner Murdock stated that an issue that came up tonight during discussion regarding
connectivity of the stormwater systems. He asked if there could be a map that would show this
sort of thing.

Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he can show the Commission individual developments but
cannot show the whole thing. He stated the township worked on one about 25 years ago, but
there has been a lot of development since that was created and it would be very out of date.

Chair Lobermeier stated that the Commission may want to consider taking a look at lot widths to
see if they should still be at 200 feet.

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER COUGHLIN, SECONDED BY
COMMISSIONER ERICSON, TO ADJOURN THE SEPTEMBER 9, 2019 “REGULAR
MEETING” OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION AT 9:02 PM.

Voting Aye: Murdock, Ericson, Coughlin, West and Lobermeier
Voting Nay: None

Abstain:  None

Absent:  None

10



